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CALIFORNIA SOFTWARE COMPANY LIMITED

STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of California Software Company Limited
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of California Software Company
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows
and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial control that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Auditor’s Responsibility

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s
preparation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
standalone Ind AS financial statements.
Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the standalone
Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2018, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes
in equity for the year ended on that date.
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Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.
We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which
are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.
We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act.
Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 1”a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:
a)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books;
c)

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended;
e)

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2018, and taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2018, from
being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

f)

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
2” to this report;

g)

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:


The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone Ind AS financial statements;



The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative
contracts;



There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company;

For N. Balasubramanian Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: F0355S
N. Balasubramanian
Partner
Membership Number: 023445
Place of Signature: Chennai
Date: August 31, 2018

Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 of the section on “Report on Other
Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date
Re: California Software Company Limited (the Company)
(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.
(b) All fixed assets were physically verified by the management in accordance with a planned programme of
verifying them in phased manner over a period of three years, which, in our opinion, is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification conducted during the financial year.
(c) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds of immovable
properties included in property, plant and equipment / fixed assets are held in the name of the Company.
(ii) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the financial
year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.
(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured
or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii)(a), (b)
and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.
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(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, provisions of section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans given have been complied with by the Company. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans, investments, guarantees, and
securities given in respect of which provisions of section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and
hence not commented upon.
(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of
the Order are not applicable.

(vii) (a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax,
service tax, duty of custom, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other material statutory dues
have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has been slight delay
in few cases. The provisions relating to duty of excise is not applicable to the Company.
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, goods and service tax, duty of custom,
Value added tax, Cess and other statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable. According to the records of the Company, the disputed
amount of income-tax and service tax is Rs. 133,960,202 and Rs. 35,52,977, respectively.
(Viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a bank. The Company did not have any outstanding
loans or borrowing dues in respect of financial institution or government or dues to debenture holders.
(ix) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not raised any
money by way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt instruments hence, reporting under clause
is not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.
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(vi) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the maintenance
of cost records under clause 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the products / services of the Company.
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(x) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial
statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management, we report that no
fraud by the company or no fraud / material fraud on the company by the officers and employees of the
Company has been noticed or reported during the year.
(xi)

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial remuneration has
not been paid.

(xii)

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the order
are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details
have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting
standards.
(xiv)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance
sheet, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv)
are not applicable to the company and, not commented upon.

(xv)

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not entered into
any noncash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in section 192 of
Companies Act, 2013.

(xvi)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For N. Balasubramanian Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: F0355S
N. Balasubramanian
Partner
Membership Number: 023445

Page 104

Place of Signature: Chennai
Date: August 31, 2018

ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF CALIFORNIA SOFTWARE COMPANY
LIMITED
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”)
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of California Software Company Limited
(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.
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Auditor’s Responsibility

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
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Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.
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acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For N. Balasubramanian Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: F0355S
N. Balasubramanian
Partner
Membership Number: 023445
Place of Signature: Chennai
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Date: August 31, 2018

Particulars
II. ASSETS
1. Non-current assets
(a) Fixed Assets
(i) Tangible assets
(ii) Intangible assets
(iii) Capital work-in-progress
(iv) Intangible assets under development
(b) Non-current investments
(c) Deferred tax assets (net)
(d) Long-term loans and advances
(e) Other non-current assets
Total Non-current assets
2. Current Assets
(a) Current investments
(b) Inventories
(c) Trade receivable
(d) Cash and cash equivalents
(e) Short-term loans and advances
(f) Other current assets
Total Current assets

Note
No.

1
2
3

4
5
6
7
8

TOTAL ASSETS
I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Equity
(a) Share capital
(b) Reserve and surplus
(c) Money received against share warrants
Total Equity
2. Share application money pending allotment
3. Non-current liabilities
(a) Long-term borrowings
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (Net)
(c) Other Long term liabilities
(d) Long-term provisions
Total Non-current liabilities
4. Current liabilties
(a) Short-term borrowings
(b) Trade payables
(c) Other Current Liabilities
(d) Short-term provisions
Total Current liabilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Figures as at
31.03.2018
Rs

9
10

Figures as at
31.03.2017
Rs

31,137,969
58,742,735

31,137,969
59,742,735

89,880,705

90,880,705

6,925,750
119,768
446,800
477,107
7,969,425

342,055
15,000
357,055

97,850,130

91,237,760

158,758,060
(66,703,103)
92,054,957

123,650,060
(387,097,156)
0
(263,447,096)
-

11

-

-

12
13
14
15

3,166,105.00
1,067,180
1,426,610
135,278
5,795,173

351,079,977
2,658,286
811,325
135,278
354,684,865

97,850,130

91,237,760

Notes referred to above from an integral part of the accounts
On behalf of the Board
Vide our Report of even date
For California Software Company Limited
For N. Balasubramanian Associates
Chartered Accountants F No 0355S

(N. Balasubramanian)
Partner. M. No. 023445
Place : Chennai; Date : 29th May 2018

Dr. Vasudevan M
Managing Director

Dr. Pasupathy Raju
Director
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TABLE 1. BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2018
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TABLE 2. STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2018
Particulars

Note
No.

Figures as at
31.03.2018
Rs

Figures as at
31.03.2017
Rs

I.
II.
III.
IV.

Revenue from operations
8.1
9,525,750
0
Other Income
8.2
0
154,977
Total Revenue (I+II)
9,525,750
154,977
Expenses:
Employee benefits expense
19
3,447,921
1,203,963
Operation and Other Expenses
20
655,767
(18,425,578)
Finance Costs
21
0
0
Depreciation and amortization Expenses
0
0
Total Expenses
4,103,688
(17,221,615)
V Profit before exceptional and extraordinary
items and tax (III-IV)
5,422,062
17,376,592
VI Exceptional Items
22
0
0
VII Profit before extraordinary items and Tax (V-VI)
5,422,062
17,376,592
VIII Extraordinery items
0
0
IX Profit before Tax (VII-VIII)
5,422,062
17,376,592
X Tax expense:
(1) Current tax
1,000,000
(2) Deferred tax
0
0
(3) Current tax expense relating to prior years
Total
1,000,000
0
XI Profit / (Loss) for the period from continuing
Operations (IX-X)
4,422,062
17,376,592
XII Profit/(Loss) from discontinuing operations
0
0
XIII Tax expense of discontinuing operations
0
0
XIV Profit / (loss) from discontinuing operations
(after tax) (XII-XIII)
4,422,062
17,376,592
XV Profit / (Loss) for the period (XI+XIV)
4,422,062
17,376,592
XVI Earnings per equity share:
(1) Basic
0.36
1.41
(2) Diluted
0.36
1.41
Notes referred to above from an integral part of the accounts
On behalf of the Board
Vide our Report of even date
For California Software Company Limited
For N. Balasubramanian Associates
Chartered Accountants F No 0355S

(N. Balasubramanian)
Partner. M. No. 023445
Place : Chennai; Date : 29th May 2018

Dr. Vasudevan M
Managing Director

Dr. Pasupathy Raju
Director

TABLE 3. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATIONS
Net profit before tax and extraordinary and prior
period items
Adjustment for:
Loss on disposal of asset
Depreciation and Impirements
Deferred expenses written off
Interest Income
Interest expense
Investment Write off
Transfer to reserves
Minority Interest changes
Total
Adjustment for:
Current Assets, Loans and Advances
Current Liabilities & Provisions
Increase/ Decrease in net current asset
Cash generated from operations
Current Taxation
Deferred Taxation
Other Items to be adjusted
NET CASH FROM OPERATIONS
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING
Purchase of fixed Assets net
Cash generated from sale of asset
Deferred tax Asset
Changes in Long Term Funds
Change in Investments
Interest Income
NET CASH USED FOR INVESTING
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING
Loans borrowed ( Net of repayment)
Deferred tax liability
Increase in unsecured Loans
Increase in capital
Increase in Share premium
Increase / (Decrease) in other resereves
Decrease in Capital Reserve
Decrease in P/L due to new subsidiaries
Increase in Cumulative Translation Reserve
Minority Interest changes
Dividend Tax
Interest Expense
Dividend
NET CASH FROM FINANCING
Net increase/ decrease in cash or cash equivalents
Cash & Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash & Cash equivalents at the close of the year

YEAR ENDED
March 31,2018
5,358,542

-

5,358,542

YEAR ENDED
March 31,2017
17,472,175

-

17,472,175

(7,934,656)
(348,730,693)
(356,665,349)
(351,306,806)
1,000,000

919,542
(19,147,924)
(18,228,382)
(756,207)
-

(350,306,806)

(756,207)

(1,000,000)
(1,000,000)
35,108,000
315,972,000
-

351,080,000
(226,806)
459,657
232,851

-

-

(756,207)
1,215,864
459,657
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018
(All amounts in lakhs of (‘ ’), except share data and as stated otherwise)
ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS
California Software Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”) is primarily engaged in
providing a range of software development services, business process outsourcing services and IT
infrastructure services. The Company was incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable
in India in February 1992, having its registered office at 2nd Floor, Unit 9, STPI Building, 5 Rajiv Gandhi Road,
Taramani, Chennai 600113.
The Company leverages its infrastructure and professionals to deliver solutions across selected verticals
including financial services, manufacturing (automotive, aerospace, Hi-tech, semi-conductors), life sciences &
healthcare, public services (oil and gas, energy and utility, travel, transport and logistics), retail and consumer
products, telecom, media, publishing and entertainment.
The financial statements for the year ended 31stMarch 2018 were approved and authorized for issue by the
Board of Directors on 28th May 2018.

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a)

Basis of preparation
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended
from time to time).These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on
an accrual and going concern basis except for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured
at fair value:
a) Derivative financial instruments,
b) Certain financial assets and liabilities (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments)
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are consistent with those
of the previous year.
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The Company uses the Indian rupee (‘ ’) as its reporting currency.
(b) Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses and
other comprehensive income (OCI) that are reported and disclosed in the financial statements and
accompanying notes. These estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events,
historical experience, actions that the Company may undertake in the future and on various other
assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Significant estimates and
assumptions are used for, but not limited to, accounting for costs expected to be incurred to complete
performance under fixed price projects, allowance for uncollectible accounts receivables, accrual of warranty
costs, income taxes, valuation of share-based compensation, future obligations under employee benefit
plans, the useful lives of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, impairment of goodwill, and other
contingencies and commitments. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the year
in which the changes are made. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
(c)

Business combinations and goodwill
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is the
aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at fair value at the acquisition date. Acquisition related
costs are expensed as incurred.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognized at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as financial liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and
the amount recognized for non-controlling interest, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate
consideration transferred, the excess is recognized as capital reserve after reassessing the fair values of the
net assets.
(d)

Foreign currency and translation
The financial statements of the Company are presented in Indian Rupee (‘ ’) which is also the Company’s
functional currency. For each foreign operation, the Company determines the functional currency which is its
respective local currency.
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective functional
currency spot rates at the date of the transaction. Foreign-currency denominated monetary assets and
liabilities are translated to the relevant functional currency at exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet
date. Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss. Non-monetary assets and non-monetary liabilities denominated in a foreign
currency and measured at historical cost are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of the initial
transaction. Non-monetary assets and non-monetary liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and
measured at fair value are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date when the fair value was
determined.
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Transaction gains or losses realized upon settlement of foreign currency transactions are included in
determining net profit for the year. Revenue, expenses and cash-flow items denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into the relevant functional currencies using the exchange rate in effect on the date
of the transaction.

(e) Fair value measurement
The Company records certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis. The Company
determines fair values based on the price it would receive to sell an asset or pay to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or most
advantageous market for that asset or liability.
The Company holds certain fixed income securities, equity securities and derivatives, which must be measured
using the guidance for fair value hierarchy and related valuation methodologies. The guidance specifies a
hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to each measurement are observable or
unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources, while unobservable
inputs reflect the Company’s assumptions about current market conditions. The fair value hierarchy also
requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs
when measuring fair value. The prescribed fair value hierarchy and related valuation methodologies are as
follows:
Level 1 - Quoted inputs that reflect quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active
markets.
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The translation of foreign operations from respective functional currency into INR (the reporting currency) for
assets and liabilities is performed using the exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date, and for
revenue, expenses and cash flows is performed using an appropriate daily weighted average exchange rate
for the respective years. The exchange differences arising on translation are reported as a component of
‘other comprehensive income (loss)’. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of OCI relating to
that particular foreign operation is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
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Level 2 - Quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar
instruments in markets that are not active and model-derived valuations, in which all significant inputs are
directly or indirectly observable in active markets.
Level 3 - Valuations derived from valuation techniques, in which one or more significant inputs are
unobservable inputs which are supported by little or no market activity.
In accordance with Ind AS 113, assets and liabilities are to be measured based on the following valuation
techniques:
a) Market approach – Prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving
identical or comparable assets or liabilities.
b) Income approach – Converting the future amounts based on market expectations to its present value using
the discounting method.
c) Cost approach – Replacement cost method.
Certain assets are measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis. These assets consist primarily of nonfinancial assets such as goodwill and intangible assets. Goodwill and intangible assets recognized in business
combinations are measured at fair value initially and subsequently when there is an indicator of
impairment, the impairment is recognized.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant who would use the asset in its highest and best use.
(f) Revenue recognition
Contracts involving provision of services
Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, services have been rendered,
the fee is determinable and collectability is reasonably assured. Contracts can be primarily categorized as
time-and-material or fixed price contracts.
Time-and-material contracts
Revenue with respect to time-and-material contracts is recognized as the related services are performed.
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Fixed Price contracts
Revenue related to contracts providing maintenance and support services, is recognized over the term of
the contract where the company has continuing obligation.
Revenue from technology integration and complex network building contracts is recognized in accordance
with the Percentage-of-Completion (POC) method. Under the POC method, progress towards completion
is measured based on either achievement of specified contract milestones, cost incurred as a proportion of
estimated total cost or other measures of progress when available. If circumstances arise that change the
original estimates of revenues, costs, or extent of progress towards completion, revisions are made to the
estimates. These revisions may result in increase or decrease in estimated revenues or costs, and such
revisions are reflected in income in the year in which the circumstances that gave rise to the revision
become known to the management. Provisions for estimated losses, if any, on contracts in progress are
recorded in the period in which such losses become probable based on the current cost estimates. Contract
losses are determined to be the amount by which the estimated total cost to complete exceeds the
estimated total revenue that will be generated by the contract and are included in Cost of services and
classified in other accrued liabilities.
In arrangements involving sharing of customer revenues, revenue is recognized when the amounts are
known and the right to receive is established. Incremental revenue from existing contracts arising on future
sales to the customers is recognized when it is earned and collectability is reasonably assured.

Revenues from unit-priced contracts are recognized as transactions are processed, based on objective
measures of output.
Revenue from product sales are shown net of sales tax and applicable discounts and allowances. Revenue
related to product with installation services that are critical to the product is recognized when installation
of product at customer site is completed and accepted by the customer. If the revenue for a delivered item
is not recognized for non-receipt of acceptance from the customer, the cost of the delivered item continues
to be in inventory.
Multiple-element arrangements
When a sales arrangement contains multiple elements, such as services, hardware and software products
and licenses, revenue for each element is determined based on its fair value.
Revenue recognition for delivered elements is limited to the amount that is not contingent on the future
delivery of products or services, future performance obligations or subject to customer-specified return or
refund privileges.
Revenue from activities in transition services not having standalone value in outsourcing arrangements is
deferred and recognized over the period of the arrangement. Direct and incremental costs in relation to
such an arrangement are also deferred to the extent of revenue. Certain upfront non-recurring contract
acquisition costs incurred in the initial phases of outsourcing contracts are deferred and amortized usually
on a straight-line basis, over the term of the contract unless revenues are earned, and obligations are
fulfilled in a different pattern. The undiscounted cash flows from the arrangement are periodically
estimated and compared with the unamortized costs. If the unamortized costs exceed the undiscounted
cash flow, a loss is recognized.
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In instances when revenue is derived from sales of third-party vendor services, material or licenses, revenue
is recorded on a gross basis when the Company is a principal to the transaction and net of costs when the
Company is acting as an agent between the customer and the vendor. Several factors are considered to
determine whether the Company is a principal or an agent, most notably whether the Company is the
primary obligor to the customer, has established its own pricing, and has inventory and credit risks.

Revenue from financing leases is recognized when risk of loss has been transferred to the client and there
are no unfulfilled obligations that affect the final acceptance of the arrangement by the client. Revenue
from operating leases is accounted on a straight-line basis as service revenue over the rental period. Interest
attributable to financing leases included therein is recognized on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method.
Interest income
Interest income for all financial instruments measured at amortized cost is recorded using the effective
interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset or to the amortized cost of a financial liability. When calculating the EIR, the
Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in
the statement of profit and loss.
(g)

Income taxes
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax.
Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to
items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in equity. Current income tax for current
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Revenue is recognized net of discounts and allowances, value-added tax and goods & service tax, and
includes reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses, with the corresponding out-of-pocket expenses
included in cost of revenues.
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and prior periods is recognized at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities,
using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
Provision for income tax includes the impact of provisions established for uncertain income tax positions.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income
tax assets and liabilities recognized for those temporary differences which originate during the tax holiday
period are reversed after the tax holiday period. For this purpose, reversal of timing differences is
determined using first in first out method.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences
are expected to be recovered or settled.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.
The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is recognized as income or
expense in the year that includes the enactment or the substantive enactment date. A deferred income tax
asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilized.
Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate
recognition at that date, are recognized subsequently if new information about facts and circumstances
change. The adjustment is either treated as a reduction in goodwill (as long as it does not exceed goodwill)
if it was incurred during the measurement period or recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
(h)

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses if
any. Cost comprises the purchase price and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase
price. The Company identifies and determines separate useful lives for each major component of the
property, plant and equipment, if they have a useful life that is materially different from that of the asset
as a whole.
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Expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repairs, maintenance
expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the year during
which such expenses are incurred.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of assets are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and
loss when the asset is derecognized.
Property, plant and equipment under construction and cost of assets not ready for use at the year-end are
disclosed as capital work- in- progress.
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives, as determined by the management. Depreciation is charged on a pro-rata basis for assets
purchased / sold during the year.
(i)

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses.
Intangible assets are amortized over the useful life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an

indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting year.
Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and
are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite
lives is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of
profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.
The intangible assets are amortized over the estimated useful life of the assets as mentioned below except
certain Licensed IPRs which include the right to modify, enhance or exploit are amortized in proportion to
the expected benefits over the useful life which could range up to 15 years.
(j)

Research and development costs
Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure, on an individual project, is recognized
as an intangible asset when the Company can demonstrate:
• The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale
• Its intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset
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• How the asset will generate future economic benefits
• The availability of resources to complete the asset
• The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development
Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the cost model is applied requiring
the asset to be carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortization of the asset begins when development is complete, and the asset is available for use. It is
amortized over the period of expected future benefit. Amortization expense is recognized in the statement
of profit and loss. During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.
(k)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds. Borrowing costs also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to
the borrowing costs.
(l)

Inventory
Stock-in-trade, stores and spares are valued at the lower of the cost or net realizable value. Net realizable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion
and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
Cost of stock-in-trade procured for specific projects is assigned by identifying individual costs of each item.
Cost of stock in trade, that are interchangeable and not specific to any project and cost of stores and spare
parts are determined using the weighted average cost formula.

(m)

Impairment of non-financial assets
Goodwill
Goodwill is tested annually on March 31, for impairment, or sooner whenever there is an indication that
goodwill may be impaired, relying on a number of factors including operating results, business plans and
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Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalized as part of the
cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
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future cash flows. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is
allocated to the Company’s cash generating units (CGU) expected to benefit from the synergies arising from
the business combination. A CGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows
that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets. Impairment occurs
when the carrying amount of a CGU including the goodwill, exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of
the CGU. The recoverable amount of a CGU is the higher of its fair value less cost to sell and its value-inuse. Value-in-use is the present value of future cash flows expected to be derived from the CGU. Total
impairment loss of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the CGU
and then to the other assets of the CGU, pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the
CGU.
An impairment loss on goodwill recognized in the statement of profit and loss is not reversed in the
subsequent period.
Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of
impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the valuein-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are
largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for
the CGU to which the asset belongs. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be
recognized in the statement of profit and loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of
the asset exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the asset.
(n)

Provisions
A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is
material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows.
Retirement and other employee benefits
i.

Provident fund: Employees of the Company receive benefits under the provident fund, a defined
benefit plan. The employee and employer each make monthly contributions to the plan. A portion of
the contribution is made to the provident fund trust managed by the Company or Government
administered provident fund; while the balance contribution is made to the Government administered
pension fund. For the contribution made by the Company to the provident fund trust managed by the
Company, the Company has an obligation to fund any shortfall on the yield of the Trust’s investments
over the administered interest rates. The liability is actuarially determined (using the projected unit
credit method) at the end of the year. The funds contributed to the Trust are invested in specific
securities as mandated by law and generally consist of federal and state government bonds, debt
instruments of government-owned corporations and other eligible market securities.

ii.

In respect of superannuation, a defined contribution plan for applicable employees, the Company
contributes to a scheme administered on its behalf by an insurance company and such contributions
for each year of service rendered by the employees are charged to the statement of profit and loss.
The Company has no further obligations to the superannuation plan beyond its contributions.

iii.

Gratuity liability: The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan”)
covering eligible employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at
retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the
respective employee’s base salary and the tenure of employment (subject to a maximum of Rs. 20 lacs
per employee). The liability is actuarially determined (using the projected unit credit method) at the
end of each year. Actuarial gains / losses are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through other comprehensive income in the year
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(p)

in which they occur.
In respect to certain employees in India, the Company contributes towards gratuity liabilities to the
Gratuity Fund Trust. Trustees of the Company administer contributions made to the Trust and
contributions are invested in a scheme with Life Insurance Corporation of India as permitted by law.

(q)

iv.

Compensated absences: The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences which
are both accumulating and non-accumulating in nature. The employees can carry forward up to the
specified portion of the unutilized accumulated compensated absences and utilize it in future periods
or receive cash at retirement or termination of employment. The expected cost of accumulating
compensated absences is determined by actuarial valuation (using the projected unit credit method)
based on the additional amount expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement that has
accumulated at the balance sheet date. The expense on non-accumulating compensated absences is
recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which the absences occur. Actuarial gains/
losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.

v.

State Plan: The contribution to State Plans in India, a defined contribution plan namely Employee State
Insurance Fund is charged to the statement of profit and loss as and when employees render related
services.

Equity settled stock based compensation
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Stock-based compensation represents the cost related to stock-based awards granted to employees. The
Company measures stock-based compensation cost at grant date, based on the estimated fair value of the
award and recognizes the cost (net of estimated forfeitures) on a straight-line basis over the requisite
service period for each separately vesting portion of the award, as if award was in substance, multiple
awards. The Company estimates the fair value of stock options using the Black-Scholes valuation model.
The cost is recorded under the head employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss with
corresponding increase in “Share Based Payment Reserve”.
Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.
i.

Financial assets
All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets (other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset. Purchase and sale of financial
assets are accounted for at trade date.
Cash and short-term deposits
Cash and short-term deposits in the balance sheet comprise cash in banks and short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.
Financial assets at amortized cost
A financial asset is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows, and
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is
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included in other income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss. This category includes cash and bank balances, loans,
unbilled revenue, trade and other receivables.
Financial asset at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
A financial asset is classified and measured at fair value through OCI if both of the following criteria are
met:
a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
the financial assets, and
b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest.

Financial asset included within the OCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date
at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in OCI. Interest income is recognized in statement
of profit and loss for debt instruments. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in OCI is reclassified from OCI to statement of profit and loss.
Financial assets at Fair Value through Profit and Loss
Any financial asset, which does not meet the criteria for categorization at amortized cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income, is classified at fair value through profit and loss. Financial assets
included at the fair value through profit and loss category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
Equity investments
Equity investments in subsidiaries are measured at cost.
Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is primarily derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired, or the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.
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Impairment of financial assets
The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial
assets which are not fair valued through profit and loss. Lifetime ECL allowance is recognized for trade
receivables with no significant financing component. For all other financial assets, expected credit
losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case they are measured at lifetime ECL. The
amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the
reporting date is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
ii.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
The Company’s financial liabilities include trade payables, borrowings including bank overdrafts and
other payables.
After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss
when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires.
iii. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
Foreign exchange forward contracts and options are purchased to mitigate the risk of changes in
foreign exchange rates associated with forecast transactions denominated in certain foreign
currencies.
The Company recognizes all derivatives as assets or liabilities measured at their fair value. Changes in
fair value for derivatives not designated in a hedge accounting relationship are marked to market at
each reporting date and the related gains (losses) are recognized in the statement of profit and loss as
‘foreign exchange gains (losses)’.
The foreign exchange forward contracts and options in respect of forecast transactions which meet the
hedging criteria are designated as cash flow hedges. Changes in the derivative fair values (net of tax)
that are designated as effective cash flow hedges are deferred and recorded in the hedging reserve
account as a component of accumulated ‘other comprehensive income (loss)’ until the hedged
transaction occurs and are then recognized in the statement of profit and loss. The ineffective portion
of hedging derivatives is immediately recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
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In respect of derivatives designated as hedges, the Company formally documents all relationships
between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy
for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Company also formally assesses both at the inception
of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, whether each derivative is highly effective in offsetting changes
in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item.
Hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively from the last testing date when (1) it is determined
that the derivative financial instrument is no longer effective in offsetting changes in the fair value or
cash flows of the underlying exposure being hedged; (2) the derivative financial instrument matures or
is sold, terminated or exercised; or (3) it is determined that designating the derivative financial
instrument as a hedge is no longer appropriate. When `hedge accounting is discontinued the deferred
gains or losses on the cash flow hedge remain in ‘other comprehensive income (loss)’ until the forecast
transaction occurs. Any further change in the fair value of the derivative financial instrument is
recognized in current year earnings.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
(s)

Dividend
Final dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is recognized upon approval by the shareholders who have
the right to decrease but not increase the amount of dividend recommended by the Board of Directors.
Interim dividends are recognized on declaration by the Board of Directors.

(t)

Earnings per share (EPS)
Basic EPS amounts are computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company
by the weighted average number of equities outstanding during the year.
Diluted EPS amounts are computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share
and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all
dilutive potential equity shares. The diluted potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable
had the shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the outstanding shares).
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Offsetting of financial instruments
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Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as at the beginning of the year, unless issued at a
later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each year presented.
(u)

Recently issued accounting pronouncements
On 28 March 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), notified Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) (Amendments) Rules, 2018, amending the following standards:
Appendix B to Ind AS 21,‘Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration’
The amendment clarifies that, in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or nonmonetary liability relating to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which an
entity initially recognizes the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration.

The Appendix is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2018. However, since the
Company’s current practice is in line with the Interpretation, the Company does not expect any effect on its
financial statements.
Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contract with Customers
Ind AS 115 establishes a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising
from contracts with customers. Ind AS 115 will supersede the current revenue recognition standard Ind AS
18 Revenue, Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts. The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 115 is financial
periods beginning on or after April 1, 2018.
The core principle of Ind AS 115 is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to
be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Under Ind AS 115, an entity recognizes revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer.
The standard permits two possible methods of transition:
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o

o

Retrospective approach-Under this approach the standard will be applied retrospectively to each
prior reporting period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors
Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized at the date of
initial application (Cumulative catch - up approach)

The Company is currently evaluating the impact that the adoption of this new standard will have on its
financial statements.

PARTICULARS
1, NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS (AT COST)
Investment in Unquoted Equity Shares
In Subsidiaries
CSWL Inc.U.S.A.(Wholly Owned).
9,662,800 ( PY 6,162,800 ) equity shares of $1 each fully paid up
Aspire Communications, Mysore, India
2,000,000 equity shares of Rs 10/- each fully paid up
Other non-current investments
Total
2. Deferred Income Tax Asset
Carry Forward Loss
Depreciation
Total
3. Long-term loans and advances
Security deposits
Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considered good
Doubtful
Less: Provision for doubtful deposits
Loans and advances to related parties
Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considered good
Doubtful
Less: Provision for doubtful loans and advances
Others
Advance income tax # (net of provisions `
Unsecured, considered good
Total
4. CURRENT INVESTMENTS (AT COST)
Investment in Unquoted Equity Shares
5. Trade Receivables
Trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six months from
the date they were due for payment #
Unsecured Considered Good
Considered Doubtful
Less: Provision for doubtful debts
Sub Total
Other Trade receivables
Unsecured, considered good
Doubtful
Less: Provision for doubtful trade receivables
Sub Total
Grand Total

As at
31-Mar-18

As at
31-Mar-17

-

-

31,137,969

31,137,969

31,137,969

31,137,969

-

-

-

-

-

-

58,742,735

59,742,735

58,742,735

59,742,735

-

-

6,925,750
6,925,750
6,925,750
-

-
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TABLE 4. ADVANCES, TRADE RECEIVABLES, CURRENT AND NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS
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TABLE 5. SHORT TIME LOANS AND ADVANCES
PARTICULARS
6. Cash and cash equivalents
(a) Cash on hand
(b) Cheques, drafts on hand
(c) Balances with banks
(i) In current accounts
(ii) In EEFC accounts & Foreign banks
(iii) In deposit accounts (Refer Note (i) below)
(iv) In earmarked accounts
- Unpaid dividend accounts
Total
7. Short-term loans and advances
Loans and advances to employees
Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considered good
Doubtful
Less: Provision for doubtful loans and advances
Prepaid expenses - Unsecured, considered good (For e.g. Insurance
premium, Annual maintenance contracts, etc.)
Balances with government authorities
Total
8. Other current assets
Accruals
(i) Interest accrued on deposits
(ii) Interest accrued on investments
(iii) Interest accrued on trade receivables
Others
(i) Insurance claims
(ii) Other Receivables
(iii) Dividend Receivable
(iv) Others (specify nature)-GST Input
Rent Receivable
Less Provisions
Total
8.1 Revenue from operations
Sale of products
Sale of services
Other operating revenues
Total
8.2 Other income
Other non-operating income comprises:
Rental income
Interest On FD
Bad debts recovered
Miscellaneous income
Total - Other non-operating income

As at
31-Mar-18

As at
31-Mar-17

16,596
-

238,883
-

103,172
119,768

103,172
342,055

33,000
413,800
-

446,800

-

15000
-

15,000

-

477,107
477,107

-

9,525,750
9,525,750

-

-

154,977
154,977

TABLE 6. SHARE CAPITAL

PARTICULARS

As at
31-Mar-18
Rs.

As at
31-Mar-17
Rs.

9. SHARE CAPITAL
A
AUTHORISED CAPITAL
21,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each with equal voting rights
210,000,000
40,000,000 Preference Shares of Rs.10/- each with equal voting rights400,000,000
Total
610,000,000

150,000,000
150,000,000

ISSUED CAPITAL
123,65,006
3510800
Optionally
Equity Shares
Convertible
of Rs.10/Redeemable
each withPreference
equal voting rights
Shares(OCRPS) at Rs.10

123,650,060
35,108,000

123,650,060

Total

158,758,060

123,650,060

123,650,060
35,108,000
158,758,060

123,650,060

SUBSCRIBED, CALLED UP AND PAID UP CAPITAL
123,65,006
Equity Shares
of Rs.10/each withPreference
equal voting rights
3510800 Optionally
Convertible
Redeemable
Shares(OCRPS) at Rs.10
Total
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123,650,060

(The paid up share capital includes shares worth Rs. 7,24,920 which were issued by the
company in October 1994 for consideration other than Cash)

PARTICULARS
Opening Balance (Equity Shares)
Changes During the year( Optionally Convertible Redeemable
Preference Shares(OCRPS) at Rs.10)
Closing Balance

As at
31-Mar-18
Rs.
12,365,006
3510800
15,875,806
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TABLE 7. RECONCILIATION OF SHARES
As at
31-Mar-17
Rs.
12,365,006
0
12,365,006
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TABLE 8. SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING MORE THAN 5% OF TOTAL SHARES
NAME OF THE SHARE HOLDERS
VASUDEVAN M

No of Shares % No of Shares %
5536673

KEMOIL LTD

44.78
-

VINAYAK KUDVA

2747456

22.21

8284129

66.99

8743911 70.71
8743911 70.71

TABLE 9. RESERVE AND SURPLUS

PARTICULARS

As at

As at

31-Mar-18
Rs.

31-Mar-17
Rs.
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10. Reserve and surplus
(A) Capital reserve
Opening balance
206,250
Add: Additions during the year (give details)
Less: Utilised / transferred during the year (give details)
Closing balance
206,250
(B) Securities premium account
Opening balance
633,084,932
Add : Premium on Preference shares issued during the year(3510800@90)
315,972,000
Less : Utilised during the year for:
Closing balance
949,056,932
(C) General reserve
Opening balance
65,864,252
Add: Transferred from surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss
Less: Utilised / transferred during the year for:
Closing balance
65,864,252
(D) Surplus / (Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening balance
(1,086,252,590)
Add: Profit / (Loss) for the year
4,422,060
Less: Amount Transferred to
Closing balance
(1,081,830,530)
Total

(66,703,096)

206,250

206,250
633,084,932

633,084,932
65,864,252

65,864,252
(1,103,629,182)
17,376,592
(1,086,252,590)
(387,097,156)

PARTICULARS

11. Long-term borrowings
Term loans
From banks
Secured
Canara Bank Building Term Loan
Total

As at
31-Mar-18
Rs.

-

As at
31-Mar-17
Rs.

-

12. Short-term borrowings
Loans repayable on demand
From Directors
Secured
Unsecured From others
Chemoil Advanced Management Services Pvt Ltd
Chemoil International Pte Ltd
Chemoil Europe B.V
Total

3,166,105
3,166,105

256,435,173
69,247,076
25,397,728
351,079,977

13. Trade Payables

1,067,180

2,658,286

14. Other current liabilities
Term Loan Instalments due within one year
Term Loan Instalments overdue for payment
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Interest accrued and due on borrowings
Income received in advance (Unearned revenue)
103,172
103,172
Unpaid dividends*
Rent Deposits
346,278
Statutory remittances (Contributions to PF and ESIC,
654
359,160
TDS Payable
CST&VAT
707,500
618,000
Other expenses Payable
Advance Payable -Others
811,325
1,426,610
Total
*Of the above Rs.51163/- was due for Investor Protection and education fund 29/08/2014. Company
transferred the amount on 04/05/2015 and filed necessary forms.
15. Short-term provisions
Gratuity Provision
Total

135,278
135,278

135,278
135,278
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TABLE 10. LIABILITIES
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TABLE 11. OPERATIONS AND OTHER EXPENSES
PARTICULARS

As at
31-Mar-18
Rs.

As at
31-Mar-17
Rs.

19 Employee benefits expense
3,253,225
149,423
45,273

1,104,333
68,814
30,816

Total

3,447,921

1,203,963

20 OPERATION AND OTHER EXPENSES
Electricity Charges
Maintenance
Water
Rent
Rates & taxes
Insurance
Repairs & Maintenance - Buildings
Repairs & Maintenance - Plant and Machinery
Communication Expenses
Travelling Expenses

457,957
322,430
38,171
1,797,860
10,000
155,198
14,900

396,646
33,410
23,980
38,292

Audit fee
Other Audit expenses
Penalty, Fine etc
Legal ,Professional and Secretarial Expenses
Exchange difference (Net)
Payables / Receivables written off
Loss on Sale of Investments-Aspire
Other Expenses
Loss on sale of assets
TDS exces paid
Commission
Provision for rent receivable
Bank Charges
Office Maintenance
Excess service credit write off

618,000
4,188,729
99
(2,552,355)
(4,481,110)
4,411
81,476
-

857,802
138,377
3,436,048
(19,047)
(23,491,356)
61,854
5,355
93,062
-

655,767

(18,425,578)

Salaries & Allowances
Contribution to Provident and other funds
Staff Welfare Expenses

Total

TABLE 12. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

As at 31.03.2018

As at 31.03.2017

24 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Guarantees given on behalf of other companies

-

-

Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt in respect of
certain tax matters which are subjudice

-

-

i) Income Tax ( net of deposit)

133,960,202

132,001,334

35,52,977

35,52,977

Outstanding Bank Guarantees

-

-

Reimbursement of travel expenses to Directors

-

-

Sitting Fees paid / payable to Directors

-

-

NA

NA

ii) Service Tax
25 OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION

26 GOING CONCERN

CALIFORNIA SOFTWARE COMPANY LIMITED
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Company has started its business with overseas and Indian Clients with new
management tream. After five years, companys has generated 10 million
revenue with 20 percent profitability. The vision of the new management is
to make this company as one of the emerging IT innovative revenue with
the mission of 1 billion revenue within 2025. The Vision and Mission of the
company achieved byb adopting new technologies and also by acquiring
multiple companies around the world.
27 DISCONTINUING OPERATIONS
28 BASIS FOR PREPARATION
Financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention and comply with accounting standards in all material respects

a) Impairment of Fixed Assets
There is no impairment of such assets.
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29 IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS
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TABLE 13. UNSECURED LOANS AND AUDITORS REMUNERATION
NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

As at 31.03.2018

As at 31.03.2017

30 TRADE RECEIVABLES & PAYABLES
31 UNSECURED LOAN FROM ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Company has taken unsecured loans as given below form various
companies
1. Chemoil Advanced Management Services Pvt Ltd

-

2. Chemoil Information Services Pvt Ltd

-

3. Chemoil International Pte Ltd

-

6,92,47,076

4. Chemoil Europe B.V

-

2,53,97,728

-

35,10,79,977

Total

25,64,35,173
-

32 TRANSFER PRICING
33 QUANTITATIVE DETAILS
Not applicable since the Company is not engaged in any trading activities.
34 AUDITORS' REMUNERATION
Payments to Auditors comprise the following:
Statutory Audit
Tax Audit
Limited Review and Consolidation
Internal Audit fee, Certification & other expenses
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Total

500,000
-

500,000
150,000

400,000
-

950,000
245,000

900,000

1,845,000

Nil

Nil

35 VALUE OF IMPORTS ON CIF BASIS
Capital Goods
36 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTION
Foreign currency transactions in respect of Banking transactions are
accounted at the exchange rates ruling on the date of transaction.

TABLE 14. EARNINGS OF FOREIGN CURRENCY
NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

As at 31.03.2018

As at 31.03.2017

Nil

Nil

37 EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY
38 EARNINGS IN FOREIGN CURRENCY
Sales
Other Income

9,525,750
-

39 DIVIDEND REMITTED IN FOREIGN CURRENCY

Nil
-

Nil

Nil

40 SEGMENT REPORTING
The company has stopped entirely its principal activity of providing
software development and its sales and services and hence current year
there is no segment wise reporting.
41 DISCLOSURE UNDER AS 15 REVISED ON EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
PF , Gratuity , leave encashment and other medical benefits have been
provided as per rules.
42. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE
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The above information regarding related parties have been determined to
the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information
available with the Company.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
With Subsidiaries

-

-

1. Chemoil Advanced management Services P Ltd

-

-

Interest On loan

-

-

Unsecured Loans

-

Other Payables

-

-

2. Chemoil International Pte Ltd

-

-

Unsecured Loans

-

-

With other group Companies

43 EARNINGS PER SHARE
Weighted average - No. of shares
Profit after Tax - $
Basic Earnings per Share - $
4 As at March 31, 2018 there is no interest payable to Micro and Small
Enterprises as defined under the Micro Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006. This information and that disclosed under schedule
11 have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on
the basis of information available with the Company.

12,365,006

12,365,006

4,422,062

1,73,76,592

0.36

1.41

Page 129

58,26,000
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TABLE 15. DISPUTE TABLE
S.
Name of the Statute
No
1

Nature of the dues

Amount in Rs

Forum where
dispute is pending

Income Tax Act, 1961
Income Tax ( A.yr 1997-98)

11,27,394

Assessing Officer

22,84,617

Assessing Officer

15,24,090

Madras High Court

33,56,300

Madras High Court

Income Tax ( A.yr 2003-04)

12,42,460

Madras High Court

6

Income Tax Act, 1961

Income Tax ( A.yr 2004-05)

12,914,393

Assessing Officer

7

Income Tax Act, 1961

Income Tax ( A.yr 2006-07)

12,380

Assessing Officer

8

Income Tax Act, 1961

Income Tax & TDS ( A.yr 2007-08)

1,96,36,828

Assessing Officer

9

Income Tax Act, 1961

Income Tax ( A.yr 2008-09)

5,320,670

Assessing Officer

10 Income Tax Act, 1961

Income Tax ( A.yr 2009-10)

3,786,310

Assessing Officer

12 Income Tax Act, 1961

Income tax (Ay 2010-11)

2,544,460

Assessing Officer

13 Income Tax Act, 1961

Income Tax (AY 2011-12)

48,678,090

Assessing Officer

14 Income Tax Act, 1961

Income Tax (AY 2013-14)

30,361,050

Assessing Officer

14 Income Tax Department

TDS Ward Chennai(FY 2007-08)

2,29,850

15 Income Tax Department

TDS Ward Chennai(FY 2008-09)

4,76,980

16 Income Tax Department

TDS Ward Chennai(FY 2009-10)

39,440

17 Income Tax Department

TDS Ward Chennai(FY 2010-11)

70,650

18 Income Tax Department

TDS Ward Chennai(FY 2011-12)

1,86,880

19 Income Tax Department

TDS Ward Chennai(FY 2012-13)

1,51,460

20 Income Tax Department

TDS Ward Chennai(FY 2013-14)

9,200

21 Income Tax Department

TDS Ward Chennai(FY 2014-15)

6,700

2

Income Tax Act, 1961
Income Tax ( A.yr 2000-01)

3

Income Tax Act, 1961
Income Tax ( A.yr 2001-02)

4

Income Tax Act, 1961
Income Tax ( A.yr 2002-03)

5

Income Tax Act, 1961

Total IT demand
Service Tax

Service Tax

TDS Ward 1(1)
Chennai
TDS Ward 1(1)
Chennai
TDS Ward 1(1)
Chennai
TDS Ward 1(1)
Chennai
TDS Ward 1(1)
Chennai
TDS Ward 1(1)
Chennai
TDS Ward 1(1)
Chennai
TDS Ward 1(1)
Chennai

13,39,60,202
35,52,977 *

Appeal
against
order in appeal
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of California Software Company Limited
Report on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of California Software Company
Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”), its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) and its associates, comprising of the consolidated Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2018, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income, the
consolidated Cash Flow Statement, the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements”).
Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated Ind AS financial
statements in terms of the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) that give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income,
consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group including its Associates in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, as amended.
The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Group and of its associates and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.
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Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.
While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules made thereunder. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Holding
Company’s preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Holding Company’s Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.
Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required

and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India of the
consolidated state of affairs of the Group and its associates as at March 31, 2018, their consolidated profit
including other comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements;
(b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books;
(c) The consolidated Balance Sheet, consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the consolidated Cash Flow Statement and consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account maintained for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements;
(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules,
2015, as amended;
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(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on
March 31, 2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and on the basis of written
representations received from directors of its subsidiaries incorporated in India none of the directors of the
Group’s companies, incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from being appointed as a director
in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
(f) With respect to the adequacy and the operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, refer to our separate
report in “Annexure 1” to this report;



The consolidated Ind AS financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on its
consolidated financial position of the Group in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements;



Provision has been made in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, as required under the
applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts;



There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company during the year ended March 31, 2018.
There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by its subsidiaries incorporated in India during the year ended March 31, 2018.

For N. Balasubramanian Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: F0355S
N. Balasubramanian
Partner
Membership Number: 023445
Place of Signature: Chennai
Date: August 31, 2018
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(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:

CALIFORNIA SOFTWARE COMPANY LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ANNEXURE 1 - TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF CALIFORNIA SOFTWARE
COMPANY LIMITED
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”)
In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of California Software Company Limited as
of and for the year ended March 31, 2018, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of California Software Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”) and its subsidiary
companies, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The respective Board of Directors of the of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are
companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Act.
Auditor’s Responsibility
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Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, both, issued by Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India, and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or

timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion
In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India,
have, maintained in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March
31, 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
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For N. Balasubramanian Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: F0355S
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N. Balasubramanian
Partner
Membership Number: 023445
Place of Signature: Chennai
Date: August 31, 2018
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TABLE 1. CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2018
Particulars
II. ASSETS
1. Non-current assets
(a) Fixed Assets
(i) Tangible assets
(ii) Intangible assets
(iii) Capital work-in-progress
(iv) Intangible assets under development
(b) Non-current investments
(c) Deferred tax assets (net)
(d) Long-term loans and advances
(e) Other non-current assets
Total Non-current assets
2. Current assets
(a) Current investments
(b) Inventories
(c) Trade receivable
(d) Cash and cash equivalents
(e) Short-term loans and advances
(f) Other current assets
Total Current assets

Note
No.

1
2
3
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2. Share application money pending allotment
3. Non-Current liabilities
(a) Long-term borrowings
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (Net)
(c) Other Long term liabilities
(d) Long-term provisions
Total Non-current liabilities
4. Current liabilities
(a) Short-term borrowings
(b) Trade payables
(c) Other Current Liabilities
(d) Short-term provisions
Total Current liabilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

8
9

Figures as at
31.03.2017
Rs

5,500
58,742,735
58,748,236

5,500
59,742,735
59,748,236

6,925,750
232,851
446,800
477,106
8,082,507

459,658
15,000
474,658

66,830,743

60,222,894

158,758,060
(97,986,969)
60,771,091

123,650,060
(418,217,513)
(294,567,453)

4
5
6
7

TOTAL ASSETS
I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Equity
(a) Share capital
(b) Reserve and surplus
(c) Money received against share warrants
Total Equity

Figures as at
31.03.2018
Rs

0
10

11
12
13
14

-

-

3,166,105.00
1,067,180
1,585,610
240,758
6,059,653

351,079,977
2,658,286
811,325
240,758
354,790,345

66,830,744

60,222,894

Notes referred to above from an integral part of the accounts
On behalf of the Board
Vide our Report of even date
For California Software Company Limited
For N. Balasubramanian Associates
Chartered Accountants F No 0355S

(N. Balasubramanian)
Partner. M. No. 023445

Place : Chennai; Date : 29th May 2018

Dr. Vasudevan M
Managing Director

Dr. Pasupathy Raju
Director

Particulars

I.
II.
III.
IV.

Revenue from operations
Other Income
Total Revenue (I+II)
Expenses:
Employee benefits expense
Operation and Other Expenses
Finance Costs
Depreciation & Amortization
Total Expenses
V Profit before exceptional and extraordinary
items and tax (III-IV)
VI Exceptional Items
VII Profit before extraordinary items and Tax (V-VI)
VIII Extraordinery items
IX Profit before Tax (VII-VIII)
X Tax expense:
(1) Current tax
(2) Deferred tax
(3) Current tax expense relating to prior years
Total
XI Profit / (Loss) for the period from continuing
Operations (IX-X)
XII Profit/(Loss) from discontinuing operations
XIII Tax expense of discontinuing operations
XIV Profit / (loss) from discontinuing operations
(after tax) (XII-XIII)
XV Profit / (Loss) for the period (XI+XIV)
Less Minority Interest
XV Profit / (Loss) for the period (XI+XIV)
XVI Earnings per equity share:
(1) Basic
(2) Diluted
Vide our Report of even date
For N. Balasubramanian Associates
Chartered Accountants

(N. Balasubramanian)
Partner.
M. No. 023445

Note
No.

Figures as at
31.03.2018
Rs

Figures as at
31.03.2017
Rs

16
17

9,525,750
(1,961)
9,523,789

0
171,589
171,589

19
20
21
22

3,447,921
717,326
0
0
4,165,247

1,203,963
(18,504,549)
0
0
(17,300,586)

5,358,542
0
5,358,542
0
5,358,542

17,472,175
0
17,472,175
0
17,472,175

1,000,000
0
0
1,000,000

0
0
0
0

4,358,542
0
0

17,472,175
0
0

0
4,358,542
0
4,358,542

0
17,472,175
0
17,472,175

23

0.27
1.41
0.27
1.41
On behalf of the Board
For California Software Company Limited

Dr. M. Vasudevan
Manaing Director

Vijayakumar M
Director
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TABLE 2. CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
MARCH 31, 2018
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
MARCH 31, 2018
ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS
California Software Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company” or “the Parent Company”) and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as “the Group”) are primarily engaged in providing a range of
software development services, business process outsourcing services and IT infrastructure services. The Company
was incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India in February 1992, having its
registered office at 2nd Floor, Unit 9, STPI Building, 5 Rajiv Gandhi Road, Taramani, Chennai 600113.
The Group leverages its offshore infrastructure and professionals to deliver solutions across select verticals
including financial services, manufacturing (automotive, aerospace, Hi-tech, semi-conductors), life sciences &
healthcare, public services (oil and gas, energy and utility, travel, transport and logistics), retail and consumer
products, telecom, media, publishing and entertainment.
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 were approved and authorized for issue
by the Board of Directors on 28 May 2018.

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from
time to time).
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual
and going concern basis, except for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:
a) Derivative financial instruments,
b) Certain financial assets and liabilities (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments),
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are consistent
with those of the previous year.
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The Group uses the Indian rupee (‘ ’) as its reporting currency.
Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of California Software Company
Limited, the Parent Company, and its subsidiaries. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group
controls an investee if and only if the Group has:
a) Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee)
b) Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
c) The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption

and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:
a) The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee
b) Rights arising from other contractual arrangements
c) The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights
The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control.
The financial statements of the subsidiaries in the Group are added on a line-by-line basis and inter-company
balances and transactions including unrealized gain / loss from such transactions, are eliminated upon
consolidation. The consolidated financial statements are prepared by applying uniform accounting policies in
use by the Group.
An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not in control or joint control
over those policies. The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit and loss of an associate is shown on the face
of the statement of profit and loss.
Use of estimates
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses and
other comprehensive income (OCI) that are reported and disclosed in the consolidated financial statements
and accompanying notes. These estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events,
historical experience, actions that the Group may undertake in the future and on various other assumptions
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Significant estimates and assumptions are used
for, but not limited to, accounting for costs expected to be incurred to complete performance under fixed price
projects, allowance for uncollectible accounts receivables, accrual of warranty costs, income taxes, valuation
of share-based compensation, future obligations under employee benefit plans, the useful lives of property,
plant and equipment, intangible assets, impairment of goodwill, and other contingencies and commitments.
Changes in estimates are reflected in the consolidated financial statements in the year in which the changes
are made. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is the
aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at fair value at the acquisition date and the amount of
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group measures the noncontrolling interest in the acquiree at fair value. Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred.
Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognized at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as financial liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and
the amount recognized for non-controlling interest, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate
consideration transferred, the excess is recognized as capital reserve after reassessing the fair values of the
net assets.
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Business combinations and goodwill
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Foreign currency and translation
The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (`), which is also the parent
company’s functional currency. For each entity, the Group determines the functional currency which is its
respective local currency, except for four subsidiaries outside India being investment companies which use the
‘`’ as their functional currency, and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. The Group uses the direct method of consolidation and on disposal of a foreign
operation the gain or loss that is reclassified to the statement of profit and loss reflects the amount that arises
from using this method.
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group’s entities at their respective functional
currency spot rates at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and
liabilities are translated to the relevant functional currency at exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet
date. Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss. Non-monetary assets and non-monetary liabilities denominated in a foreign
currency and measured at historical cost are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of initial
transaction. Non-monetary assets and non-monetary liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and
measured at fair value are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date when the fair value was
determined.
Transaction gains or losses realized upon settlement of foreign currency transactions are included in
determining net profit for the year. Revenue, expenses and cash-flow items denominated in foreign currencies
are translated into the relevant functional currencies using the exchange rate in effect on the date of the
transaction.
The translation of foreign operations from respective functional currency into INR (the reporting currency) for
assets and liabilities is performed using the exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date, and for revenue,
expenses and cash flows is performed using an appropriate daily weighted average exchange rate for the
respective years. The exchange differences arising on translation for consolidation are reported as a
component of ‘other comprehensive income (loss)’. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of OCI
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
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Fair value measurement
The Group records certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis. The Group determines
fair values based on the price it would receive to sell an asset or pay to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or most advantageous
market for that asset or liability.
The Group holds certain fixed income securities, equity securities and derivatives, which must be measured
using the guidance for fair value hierarchy and related valuation methodologies. The guidance specifies a
hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to each measurement are observable or
unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources, while unobservable
inputs reflect the Group’s assumptions about current market conditions. The fair value hierarchy also requires
an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when
measuring fair value. The prescribed fair value hierarchy and related valuation methodologies are as follows:
Level 1 - Quoted inputs that reflect quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active
markets.
Level 2 - Quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar
instruments in markets that are not active and model-derived valuations, in which all significant
inputs are directly or indirectly observable in active markets.
Level 3 - Valuations derived from valuation techniques, in which one or more significant inputs are
unobservable inputs which are supported by little or no market activity.

In accordance with Ind AS 113, assets and liabilities are to be measured based on the following valuation
techniques:


Market approach – Prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving
identical or comparable assets or liabilities.



Income approach – Converting the future amounts based on market expectations to its present value
using the discounting method.



Cost approach – Replacement cost method.

Certain assets are measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis. These assets consist primarily of nonfinancial assets such as goodwill and intangible assets. Goodwill and intangible assets recognized in business
combinations are measured at fair value initially and subsequently when there is an indicator of impairment,
the impairment is recognized.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant
who would use the asset in its highest and best use.
Revenue recognition
Contracts involving provision of services
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Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, services have been rendered, the
fee is determinable and collectability is reasonably assured. Contracts can be primarily categorized as timeand-material or fixed price contracts.
Time-and-material contracts
Revenue with respect to time-and-material contracts is recognized as the related services are performed.
Fixed Price contracts

Revenue from technology integration and complex network building contracts is recognized in accordance with
the Percentage-Of-Completion (POC) method. Under the POC method, progress towards completion is
measured based on either achievement of specified contract milestones, cost incurred as a proportion of
estimated total cost or other measures of progress when available. If circumstances arise that change the
original estimates of revenues, costs, or extent of progress towards completion, revisions are made to the
estimates. These revisions may result in increase or decrease in estimated revenues or costs, and such revisions
are reflected in income in the year in which the circumstances that gave rise to the revision become known to
the management. Provisions for estimated losses, if any, on contracts-in-progress are recorded in the period
in which such losses become probable based on the current cost estimates. Contract losses are determined to
be the amount by which the estimated total cost to complete exceeds the estimated total revenue that will be
generated by the contract and are included in cost of services and classified in other accrued liabilities.
In arrangements involving sharing of customer revenues, revenue is recognized when the amounts are known
and the right to receive is established. Incremental revenue from existing contracts arising on future sales to
the customers is recognized when it is earned and collectability is reasonably assured.
Revenues from unit-priced contracts are recognized as transactions are processed, based on objective
measures of output.

Revenue from product sales are shown net of sales tax and applicable discounts and allowances. Revenue
related to product with installation services that are critical to the product is recognized when installation of
product at customer site is completed and accepted by the customer. If the revenue for a delivered item is not
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Revenue related to contracts providing maintenance and support services, is recognized over the term of the
contract where the Group has continuing obligation.
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recognized for non-receipt of acceptance from the customer, the cost of the delivered item continues to be in
inventory.
Multiple-element arrangements
When a sales arrangement contains multiple elements, such as services, hardware and software products and
licenses, revenue for each element is determined based on its fair value.
Revenue recognition for delivered elements is limited to the amount that is not contingent on the future
delivery of products or services, future performance obligations or subject to customer-specified return or
refund privileges.
Revenue from activities in transition services not having standalone value in outsourcing arrangements is
deferred and recognized over the period of the arrangement. Direct and incremental costs in relation to such
an arrangement are also deferred to the extent of revenue. Certain upfront non-recurring contract acquisition
costs incurred in the initial phases of outsourcing contracts are deferred and amortized usually on a straight
line basis, over the term of the contract unless revenues are earned and obligations are fulfilled in a different
pattern. The undiscounted cash flows from the arrangement are periodically estimated and compared with the
unamortized costs. If the unamortized costs exceed the undiscounted cash flow, a loss is recognized.
In instances when revenue is derived from sales of third-party vendor services, material or licenses, revenue is
recorded on a gross basis when the Group is a principal to the transaction and net of costs when the Group is
acting as an agent between the customer and the vendor. Several factors are considered to determine whether
the Group is a principal or an agent, most notably whether the Group is the primary obligor to the customer,
has established its own pricing, and has inventory and credit risks.
Revenue is recognized net of discounts and allowances, value-added tax and goods & service tax, and includes
reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses, with the corresponding out-of-pocket expenses included in cost of
revenues.
Revenue from financing leases is recognized when risk of loss has been transferred to the client and there are
no unfulfilled obligations that affect the final acceptance of the arrangement by the client. Revenue from
operating leases is accounted on a straight-line basis as service revenue over the rental period. Interest
attributable to financing leases included therein is recognized on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method.
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Interest income
Interest income for all financial instruments measured at amortized cost is recorded using the effective interest
rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset or to the amortized cost of a financial liability. When calculating the EIR, the Group
estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does
not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit
and loss.
Income taxes
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax.
Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to items
recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in equity. Current income tax for current and prior
periods is recognized at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax
rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Provision for
income tax includes the impact of provisions established for uncertain income tax positions.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities recognized for all temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax assets
and liabilities are recognized for those temporary differences which originate during the tax holiday period are
reversed after the tax holiday period. For this purpose, reversal of timing differences is determined using firstin-first-out method.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured
using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and
are expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be
recovered or settled.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assetsagainst current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.
The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is recognized as income or
expense in the year that includes the enactment or the substantive enactment date. A deferred income tax
asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilized. Deferred income taxes are not provided on
the undistributed earnings of subsidiaries and branches where it is expected that the earnings of the subsidiary
or branch will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.
Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate recognition
at that date, are recognized subsequently if new information about facts and circumstances change. The
adjustment is either treated as a reduction in goodwill (as long as it does not exceed goodwill) if it was incurred
during the measurement period or recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
In some tax jurisdictions, tax deductions on share based payments to employees are different from the related
cumulative remuneration expenses. If the amount of the tax deduction (or estimated future tax deduction)
exceeds the amount of the related cumulative remuneration expense, the excess of the associated tax is
recognized directly in retained earnings.
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Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
Cost comprises the purchase price and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition
for its intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. The Group
identifies and determines separate useful lives for each major component of the property, plant and
equipment, if they have a useful life that is materially different from that of the asset as a whole.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the
asset is derecognized.
Property, plant and equipment under construction and cost of assets not ready for use at the year-end are
disclosed as capital work-in-progress.
Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.
Intangible assets are amortized over the useful life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting year. Changes
in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in
the asset are considered to modify the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as
changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized
in the statement of profit and loss.
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Expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repairs, maintenance expenditure
and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the year during which such
expenses are incurred.
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Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and
loss when the asset is derecognized.
The intangible assets are amortized over the estimated useful life of the assets as mentioned below except
certain Licensed IPRs which include the right to modify, enhance or exploit are amortized in proportion to the
expected benefits over the useful life which could range up to 15 years
Research and development costs
Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure, on an individual project, is recognized as
an intangible asset when the Group can demonstrate:


The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale



Its intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset



How the asset will generate future economic benefits



The availability of resources to complete the asset



The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the cost model is applied requiring
the asset to be carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortization of the asset begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is
amortized over the period of expected future benefit. Amortization expense is recognized in the statement of
profit and loss. During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.
Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalized as part of the cost of the
asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds. Borrowing costs also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the
borrowing costs.
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Inventory
Stock-in-trade, stores and spares are valued at the lower of the cost or net realizable value. Net realizable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
Cost of stock-in-trade procured for specific projects is assigned by identifying individual costs of each item. Cost
of stockin- trade, that are interchangeable and not specific to any project and cost of stores and spare parts
are determined using the weighted average cost formula.
Impairment of non-financial assets
Goodwill
Goodwill is tested annually on March 31, for impairment, or sooner whenever there is an indication that
goodwill may be impaired, relying on a number of factors including operating results, business plans and future
cash flows. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to
the Group’s cash generating units (CGU) expected to benefit from the synergies arising from the business
combination. A CGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets. Impairment occurs when the carrying
amount of a CGU including the goodwill, exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the CGU. The
recoverable amount of a CGU is the higher of its fair value less cost to sell and its value-in-use. Value-in-use is
the present value of future cash flows expected to be derived from the CGU. Total impairment loss of a CGU is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the CGU and then to the other assets of

the CGU, pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the CGU.
An impairment loss on goodwill recognized in the statement of profit and loss is not reversed in the subsequent
period.
Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of
impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-inuse) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to
which the asset belongs. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the
statement of profit and loss is measured by the amount by which
the carrying value of the asset exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the asset.
Provisions
A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows.
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Equity settled stock based compensation
Stock-based compensation represents the cost related to stock-based awards granted to employees. The
Company measures stock-based compensation cost at grant date, based on the estimated fair value of the
award and recognizes the cost (net of estimated forfeitures) on a straight line basis over the requisite service
period for each separately vesting portion of the award, as if award was in substance, multiple awards. The
Company estimates the fair value of stock options using the Black-Scholes valuation model. The cost is recorded
under the head employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss with corresponding increase in
“Share Based Payment Reserve”.
Financial Instruments

Financial assets
All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets (other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss) are added to
the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset. Purchase and sale of financial assets are
accounted for at trade date.
Cash and short-term deposits
Cash and short-term deposits in the balance sheet comprise cash in banks and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
Financial assets at amortized cost
A financial asset is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.
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A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.
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After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included
in other income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.This category includes cash and bank balances, loans, unbilled revenue, trade
and other receivables.
Financial asset at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
A financial asset is classified and measured at fair value through OCI if both of the following criteria are met:
a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets, and
b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest.
Financial asset included within the OCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at
fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in OCI. Interest income is recognized in statement of profit
and loss for debt instruments. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized
in OCI is reclassified from OCI to statement of profit and loss.
Financial assets at Fair Value through Profit and Loss
Any financial asset, which does not meet the criteria for categorization at amortized cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income, is classified at fair value through profit and loss. Financial assets
included at the fair value through profit and loss category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
Equity investments
Equity investments, for which sufficient, more recent, information to measure fair value is not available, are
measured at cost. Other equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value through profit
and loss.
Equity investments included within the fair value through profit and loss category are measured at fair value
with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
Derecognition of financial assets
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A financial asset is primarily derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired, or the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.
Impairment of financial assets
The Group recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets
which are not fair valued through profit and loss. Lifetime ECL allowance is recognized for trade receivables
with no significant financing component. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured
at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial
recognition in which case they are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit losses (or
reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date is recognized in statement of
profit and loss.
Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, borrowings including bank overdrafts and other
payables.

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method except for deferred consideration recognized in a business combination which is
subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss. Gains and losses are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization
process.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit
and loss.
Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires.
Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
Foreign exchange forward contracts and options are purchased to mitigate the risk of changes in foreign
exchange rates associated with forecast transactions denominated in certain foreign currencies.
The Group recognizes all derivatives as assets or liabilities measured at their fair value. Changes in fair value
for derivatives not designated in a hedge accounting relationship are marked to market at each reporting
date and the related gains (losses) are recognized in the statement of profit and loss as ‘foreign exchange
gains (losses)’.
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The foreign exchange forward contracts and options in respect of forecast transactions which meet the
hedging criteria are designated as cash flow hedges. Changes in the derivative fair values (net of tax) that
are designated as effective cash flow hedges are deferred and recorded in the hedging reserve account as a
component of accumulated ‘other comprehensive income (loss)’ until the hedged transaction occurs and are
then recognized in the statement of profit and loss. The ineffective portion of hedging derivatives is
immediately recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively from the last testing date when (1) it is determined that the
derivative financial instrument is no longer effective in offsetting changes in the fair value or cash flows of
the underlying exposure being hedged; (2) the derivative financial instrument matures or is sold, terminated
or exercised; or (3) it is determined that designating the derivative financial instrument as a hedge is no
longer appropriate. When hedge accounting is discontinued the deferred gains or losses on the cash flow
hedge remain in ‘other comprehensive income (loss)’ until the forecast transaction occurs. Any further
change in the fair value of the derivative financial instrument is recognized in current year earnings.
Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
Dividend
Final dividend proposed by the Board of Directors are recognized upon approval by the shareholders who have
the right to decrease but not increase the amount of dividend recommended by the Board of Directors. Interim
dividends are recognized on declaration by the Board of Directors.
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In respect of derivatives designated as hedges, the Group formally documents all relationships between
hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. The Group also formally assesses both at the inception of the hedge and on an
ongoing basis, whether each derivative is highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of
the hedged item.
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Earnings per share (EPS)
Basic EPS amounts are computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the parent
company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the parent
company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share
and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all
dilutive potential equity shares. The diluted potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable
had the shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the outstanding shares).
Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as at the beginning of the year, unless issued at a later
date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each year presented.
Recently issued accounting pronouncements
On 28 March 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
(Amendments) Rules, 2018, amending the following standards:
Appendix B to Ind AS 21, ‘Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration’
The amendment clarifies that, in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability
relating to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which an entity initially recognizes
the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance consideration.
The Appendix is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2018. However, since the Group’s
current practice is in line with the Interpretation, the Group does not expect any effect on its consolidated
financial statements.
Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contract with Customers
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Ind AS 115 establishes a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. Ind AS 115 will supersede the current revenue recognition standard Ind AS 18
Revenue, Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts. The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 115 is financial periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2018.
The core principle of Ind AS 115 is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Under Ind AS 115, an entity recognizes revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.
The standard permits two possible methods of transition:
o

o

Retrospective approach-Under this approach the standard will be applied retrospectively to each prior
reporting period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors
Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized at the date of initial
application (Cumulative catch - up approach)

The Group is currently evaluating the impact that the adoption of this new standard will have on its
consolidated financial statements.

TABLE 3. OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS
31.03.2018
Rs.

31.03.2017
Rs.

-

-

-

-

-

-

6,925,750
6,925,750
6,925,750

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1. CURRENT INVESTMENTS (AT COST)
Investment in Unquoted Equity Shares
In Subsidiaries
Investment In Labs
54,85,356 equity shares of Rs 10/- each fully paid up
3. Other Non Current Assets
Other Non Current Assest
Total
4. Trade Receivables
Unsecured Considered Good
Considered Doubtful
Less: Provision for doubtful debts
Sub Total
Other Trade receivables
Unsecured, considered good
Doubtful
Less: Provision for doubtful trade receivables
Sub Total
Grand Total
1. Due by firms or private companies in which any of the Director is a
Partner or Director or a member
(i) Chemoil Corporation USA
(ii) chemoil Energy Limited - Singapore
(iii) Chemoil advanced management services Private Limited, Chennai
(iv)IPC (USA) Inc California, USA
(v) Chemoil Middle East DMCC
2. Due from Companies under the same management :
(i)CSWL Incorporated. USA
(ii) Inatech InfoSolutions Limited UK.
(iii) Inatech Egypt
(ii) Aspire Comunication Pvt Ltd
5. Cash and cash equivalents
(a) Cash on hand
(b) Cheques, drafts on hand
(c) Balances with banks
(i) In current accounts
(ii) In EEFC accounts
(iii) In deposit accounts (Refer Note (i) below)
(iv) In earmarked accounts
- Unpaid dividend accounts
Balances held as margin money or security against borrowings,
guarantees and other commitments other earmarked accounts
(d) Others (specify nature)
Total

129,679
-
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PARTICULARS

243,243
113,243
-

103,172

-

103,172

232,851
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459,658
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TABLE 4. LONG TERM LOAN AND ADVANCES

Notes on Accounts

31.03.2018
Rs.

31.03.2017
Rs.

2. Long-term loans and advances
(b) Security deposits
Secured, considered good

-

-

Unsecured, considered good

-

-

Doubtful

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Less: Provision for doubtful deposits
(c) Loans and advances to related parties (give details @)
(Refer Note 30.7)
Secured, considered good

-

-

Unsecured, considered good

-

-

Doubtful

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Less: Provision for doubtful loans and advances
(i) Other loans and advances (specify nature)

-

-

-

-

Doubtful

-

-

-

-

-

-

Less: Provision for other doubtful loans and advances
(f) Advance income tax # (net of provisions ` 41519871 (As at
31 March, 2011 ` 41519871) - Unsecured, considered good
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934,543

Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considered good

58,742,735

59,742,735

Advance tax and Tax deducted at Source

-

-

Less Provision for taxation

-

-

Advance tax and Tax deducted at Source

-

-

Fringe Benefit Tax

-

-

Provision for Fringe Benefit Tax

-

-

Net Provision for Fringe Benefit Tax
Total

-

-

58,742,735

60,677,278

TABLE 5. SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
PARTICULARS

31.03.2018

31.03.2017

Rs.

Rs.

6. Short-term loans and advances
(c) Loans and advances to employees

33000

Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considered good

413800
-

-

-

-

-

-

(i) CENVAT credit receivable

-

-

(ii) VAT credit receivable

-

-

(iii) Service Tax credit receivable

-

-

Doubtful
Less: Provision for doubtful loans and advances
(d) Prepaid expenses - Unsecured, considered good (For e.g.
Insurance premium, Annual maintenance contracts, etc.)
Calsoft , Chennai
(e) Balances with government authorities
Unsecured, considered good

(iii) Service Tax credit receivable
Service Tax payable

18,182,525.05

18,182,525.05

18,184,800.26

18,184,800.26

Others

-

-

Inatech India
Calsoft

-

-

Total

CALIFORNIA SOFTWARE COMPANY LIMITED
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446,800

-

7. Other current assets
(c) Accruals
-

-

(ii) Interest accrued on investments

-

(iii) Interest accrued on trade receivables

-

Advance to Suppliers

-

(d) Others

15,000

(i) Insurance claims

-

(ii) Receivables on sale of investments

-

Dividend Receivable

-

(iv) Others (specify nature) GST

477,106

-

Rent Receivable

-

-

Less Provisions

-

-

-

-

Others
Total

477,106

15,000

Page 151

(i) Interest accrued on deposits
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TABLE 6. SHARE CAPITAL

Notes on Accounts

31.03.2018
Rs.

31.03.2017
Rs.

1 SHARE CAPITAL
A
AUTHORISED CAPITAL
21,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each with equal voting rights

210,000,000

4,000,000 Preference Shares of Rs.10/- each with equal voting rights
Total

150,000,000

40,000,000
250,000,000

150,000,000

123,65,006 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each with equal voting rights
3510800 Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference
Shares(OCRPS) at Rs.10

123,650,060

123,650,060

Total

158,758,060

123,650,060

123,65,006 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each with equal voting rights
3510800 Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference
Shares(OCRPS) at Rs.10

123,650,060

123,650,060

Total

158,758,060

ISSUED CAPITAL

35108000

SUBSCRIBED, CALLED UP AND PAID UP CAPITAL

35108000
123,650,060

(The paid up share capital includes shares worth Rs. 7,24,920
which were issued by the company in October 1994 for
consideration other than cash)
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B Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding
at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:
C Details of shares held by the holding company, the ultimate holding company, their subsidiaries and
associates:
D Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

TABLE 7. RESERVE AND SURPLUS

Notes on Accounts

31.03.2018
Rs.

31.03.2017
Rs.

(b) Reserve and surplus
(A) Capital reserve
Opening balance

206,250

206,250

206,250

206,250

Add: Additions during the year (give details)
Less: Utilised / transferred during the year (give details)
Closing balance
Foreign Currency Transalation reserve
Add: Current Year
Closing balance

-

-

CALIFORNIA SOFTWARE COMPANY LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(B) Securities premium account
Opening balance

633,084,932

633,084,932

Add : Premium on Preference shares issued during the year(3510800@90) 315972000
Closing balance

949,056,932

633,084,932

65,864,252

65,864,252

65,864,252

65,864,252

(C) General reserve
Opening balance
Add: Transferred from surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss
Closing balance
(D) Surplus / (Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening balance
Add: Profit / (Loss) for the year

(1,117,372,936)
4,358,542

(1,134,845,111)
17,472,175

Less: Surplus / Deficit of disinvested subsidiary( CSWL)
Closing balance
Total

(1,113,014,404)

(1,117,372,936)

(97,886,979)

(418,217,501)
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Less: Utilised / transferred during the year for:
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TABLE 8. CURRENT LIABILITIES AND TRADE PAYABLES

Notes on Accounts

31.03.2018
Rs.

31.03.2017
Rs.

10 Long-term borrowings
(b) Term loans
From banks

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Calsoft

-

-

Sanoma National Bank - Building

-

-

Secured
Canara Bank Building Term Loan
Sanoma National Bank - Building

11 Short-term borrowings
(a) Loans repayable on demand
From Directors

3,166,105

Glencore Loan

-

-

-

-

Chemoil AMS Loan Account
Chemoil Advanced Management Services Pvt Ltd

-

Chemoil Information Services Pvt Ltd

-

Chemoil International Pte Ltd

-

69,247,076

-

25,397,728

Chemoil Europe B.V
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Notes payable to related parties

256,435,173
-

-

-

Calsoft

-

-

Total

3,166,105

351,079,977

12. Trade Payables

1,067,180

108,431

Trade payable to related parties
Chemoil Energy

-

2,549,855

TABLE 9. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Notes on Accounts

31.03.2018
Rs.

31.03.2017
Rs.

13. Other current liabilities
(a) Current maturities of long-term debt

-

-

(b) Term Loan Instalments overdue for payment

-

-

(c) Interest accrued but not due on borrowings

-

-

(d) Interest accrued and due on borrowings

-

-

(e) Income received in advance (Unearned revenue)

-

-

(f) Unpaid dividends*
Rent Deposits
(i) Statutory remittances (Contributions to PF and ESIC,
Withholding Taxes,
Excise Duty, VAT, Service Tax, etc.)

103,172
-

CST&VAT

-

-

TDS Payable

359,160

9,193
-

Salary/Professional Charges
Advance for sale of building

Total

-

337,085

Other expenses Payable

654
-

EPF
Service tax

103,172

CALIFORNIA SOFTWARE COMPANY LIMITED
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-

777,000

707,500

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,585,610

811,326

*Of the above Rs.51163/- was due for Investor Protection and education fund on29/08/2014.
Company transferred the amount on 04/05/2015 and filed necessaary forms.
IT Provision
Provision for employee benefits
Others (Specify nature)

105,480

105,480
135,278
-

135,278
-

240,758

240,758
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14. Short-term provisions
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TABLE 10. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Notes on Accounts
16 Revenue from operations
Sale of products @ (Refer Note (i) below)
Sale of services @ (Refer Note (ii) below)
Other operating revenues # (Refer Note (iii) below)
Total
17 Other income
Other non-operating income comprises:
Rental income
Interest
Exchange Gain / Loss
Bad debts recovered
Miscellaneous income
Total - Other non-operating income
18 Employee benefits expense
Salaries & Allowances
Contribution to Provident and other funds
Staff Welfare Expenses
Grtuity Provision
Total
19 OPERATION AND OTHER EXPENSES
Project Expenses - Bought outs
Electricity Charges
Rent
Fees, Rates & taxes
Insurance
Repairs & Maintenance - Buildings
Water
Advertisement
Communication Expenses
Travelling Expenses
Data Circuit Expenses
Audit Fee
Other Audit expenses
Penalty Fine etc
Legal ,Professional and Secretarial Expenses
Exchange difference (Net)
Provision for rent receivable
Other write offs
Loss on Sale of Investment Aspire
Other Expenses
Loss on sale of assets
Profit on sale of assets
Commission
Marketing Expenses
Bank Charges
Printing And Stationery
Hire Charges
Office Expenses
Total

31.03.2018
Rs.

31.03.2017
Rs.

9,525,750

-

9,525,750

-

-

(1,961)

-

16,612
-

(1,961)

154,977
171,589

3,253,225
149,423
45,273
3,447,921

1,104,333
68,814
30,816
1,203,963

457,957
1,797,860
10,000
322,430
38,171
8,400
155,198
14,900
618,000
4,247,729
99
(2,552,355)
(4,489,510)
6,970
81,476
717,326

33,410
23,980
38,292
757,802
138,377
3,436,048
(23,491,356)
458,500
7,337
93,062
(18,504,549)

TABLE 11. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

As at 31.03.2018

As at 31.03.2017

24 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Guarantees given on behalf of other companies

-

-

Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt in respect of
certain tax matters which are subjudice

-

-

i) Income Tax ( net of deposit)

133,960,202

132,001,334

35,52,977

35,52,977

Outstanding Bank Guarantees

-

-

Reimbursement of travel expenses to Directors

-

-

Sitting Fees paid / payable to Directors

-

-

NA

NA

ii) Service Tax
25 OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION

26 GOING CONCERN
Company has started its business with overseas and Indian Clients with new
management tream. After five years, companys has generated 10 million
revenue with 20 percent profitability. The vision of the new management is
to make this company as one of the emerging IT innovative revenue with
the mission of 1 billion revenue within 2025. The Vision and Mission of the
company achieved byb adopting new technologies and also by acquiring
multiple companies around the world.
27 DISCONTINUING OPERATIONS
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28 BASIS FOR PREPARATION
Financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention and comply with accounting standards in all material respects

a) Impairment of Fixed Assets
There is no impairment of such assets.
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29 IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS
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TABLE 12. TRADE RECEIVABLE AND PAYABLES
NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

As at 31.03.2018

As at 31.03.2017

30 TRADE RECEIVABLES & PAYABLES
31 UNSECURED LOAN FROM ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Company has taken unsecured loans as given below form various
companies
1. Chemoil Advanced Management Services Pvt Ltd

-

2. Chemoil Information Services Pvt Ltd

-

3. Chemoil International Pte Ltd

-

6,92,47,076

4. Chemoil Europe B.V

-

2,53,97,728

-

35,10,79,977

Total

25,64,35,173
-

32 TRANSFER PRICING
33 QUANTITATIVE DETAILS
Not applicable since the Company is not engaged in any trading activities.
34 AUDITORS' REMUNERATION
Payments to Auditors comprise the following:
Statutory Audit
Tax Audit
Limited Review and Consolidation
Internal Audit fee, Certification & other expenses
Total

500,000
-

500,000
150,000

400,000
-

950,000
245,000

900,000

1,845,000

Nil

Nil
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35 VALUE OF IMPORTS ON CIF BASIS
Capital Goods
36 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTION
Foreign currency transactions in respect of Banking transactions are
accounted at the exchange rates ruling on the date of transaction.

TABLE 13. EARNINGS IN FOREIGN CURRENCY
NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

As at 31.03.2018

As at 31.03.2017

Nil

Nil

9,525,750

Nil

37 EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY
38 EARNINGS IN FOREIGN CURRENCY
Sales
Other Income

-

39 DIVIDEND REMITTED IN FOREIGN CURRENCY

Nil

Nil

40 SEGMENT REPORTING
The company has stopped entirely its principal activity of providing
software development and its sales and services and hence current year
there is no segment wise reporting.
41 DISCLOSURE UNDER AS 15 REVISED ON EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
PF , Gratuity , leave encashment and other medical benefits have been
provided as per rules.
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42. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE
The above information regarding related parties have been determined to
the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information
available with the Company.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
With Subsidiaries

-

-

1. Chemoil Advanced management Services P Ltd

-

-

Interest On loan

-

-

Unsecured Loans

-

Other Payables

-

-

2. Chemoil International Pte Ltd

-

-

Unsecured Loans

-

-

With other group Companies

43 EARNINGS PER SHARE
Weighted average - No. of shares
Profit after Tax - $
Basic Earnings per Share - $
4 As at March 31, 2018 there is no interest payable to Micro and Small
Enterprises as defined under the Micro Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006. This information and that disclosed under schedule
11 have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on
the basis of information available with the Company.

12,365,006

12,365,006

4,422,062

1,73,76,592

0.36

1.41

Page 159

58,26,000
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TABLE 14. CASH FLOW
PARTICULARS
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATIONS
Net profit before tax and extraordinary and prior
period items
Adjustment for:
Loss on disposal of asset
Depreciation and Impirements
Deferred expenses written off
Interest Income
Interest expense
Investment Write off
Transfer to reserves
Minority Interest changes
Total
Adjustment for:
Current Assets, Loans and Advances
Current Liabilities & Provisions
Increase/ Decrease in net current asset
Cash generated from operations
Current Taxation
Deferred Taxation
Other Items to be adjusted
NET CASH FROM OPERATIONS
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING
Purchase of fixed Assets net
Cash generated from sale of asset
Deferred tax Asset
Changes in Long Term Funds
Change in Investments
Interest Income
NET CASH USED FOR INVESTING
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING
Loans borrowed ( Net of repayment)
Deferred tax liability
Increase in unsecured Loans
Increase in capital
Increase in Share premium
Increase / (Decrease) in other resereves
Decrease in Capital Reserve
Decrease in P/L due to new subsidiaries
Increase in Cumulative Translation Reserve
Minority Interest changes
Dividend Tax
Interest Expense
Dividend
NET CASH FROM FINANCING
Net increase/ decrease in cash or cash equivalents
Cash & Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash & Cash equivalents at the close of the year

YEAR ENDED
March 31,2018
5,358,542

-

5,358,542

YEAR ENDED
March 31,2017
17,472,175

-

17,472,175

(7,934,656)
(348,730,693)
(356,665,349)
(351,306,806)
1,000,000

919,542
(19,147,924)
(18,228,382)
(756,207)
-

(350,306,806)

(756,207)

(1,000,000)
(1,000,000)
35,108,000
315,972,000
-

351,080,000
(226,806)
459,657
232,851

-

-

(756,207)
1,215,864
459,657

S.
Name of the Statute
No
1

Nature of the dues

Amount in Rs

Forum where
dispute is pending

Income Tax Act, 1961
Income Tax ( A.yr 1997-98)

11,27,394

Assessing Officer

22,84,617

Assessing Officer

15,24,090

Madras High Court

33,56,300

Madras High Court

Income Tax ( A.yr 2003-04)

12,42,460

Madras High Court

6

Income Tax Act, 1961

Income Tax ( A.yr 2004-05)

12,914,393

Assessing Officer

7

Income Tax Act, 1961

Income Tax ( A.yr 2006-07)

12,380

Assessing Officer

8

Income Tax Act, 1961

Income Tax & TDS ( A.yr 2007-08)

1,96,36,828

Assessing Officer

9

Income Tax Act, 1961

Income Tax ( A.yr 2008-09)

5,320,670

Assessing Officer

10 Income Tax Act, 1961

Income Tax ( A.yr 2009-10)

3,786,310

Assessing Officer

12 Income Tax Act, 1961

Income tax (Ay 2010-11)

2,544,460

Assessing Officer

13 Income Tax Act, 1961

Income Tax (AY 2011-12)

48,678,090

Assessing Officer

14 Income Tax Act, 1961

Income Tax (AY 2013-14)

30,361,050

Assessing Officer

14 Income Tax Department

TDS Ward Chennai(FY 2007-08)

2,29,850

15 Income Tax Department

TDS Ward Chennai(FY 2008-09)

4,76,980

16 Income Tax Department

TDS Ward Chennai(FY 2009-10)

39,440

17 Income Tax Department

TDS Ward Chennai(FY 2010-11)

70,650

18 Income Tax Department

TDS Ward Chennai(FY 2011-12)

1,86,880

19 Income Tax Department

TDS Ward Chennai(FY 2012-13)

1,51,460

20 Income Tax Department

TDS Ward Chennai(FY 2013-14)

9,200

21 Income Tax Department

TDS Ward Chennai(FY 2014-15)

6,700

2

Income Tax Act, 1961
Income Tax ( A.yr 2000-01)

3

Income Tax Act, 1961
Income Tax ( A.yr 2001-02)

4

Income Tax Act, 1961
Income Tax ( A.yr 2002-03)

5

Income Tax Act, 1961

Total IT demand
Service Tax

Service Tax

TDS Ward 1(1)
Chennai
TDS Ward 1(1)
Chennai
TDS Ward 1(1)
Chennai
TDS Ward 1(1)
Chennai
TDS Ward 1(1)
Chennai
TDS Ward 1(1)
Chennai
TDS Ward 1(1)
Chennai
TDS Ward 1(1)
Chennai

13,39,60,202
35,52,977 *

Appeal
against
order in appeal
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TABLE 15. DISPUTE OF INCOME TAX AND SERVICE TAX
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ROUTE MAP OF AGM VENUE

TWENTY SIXTH AGM ON SATURDAY SEPTEMBER 29, 2018 AT 3.00 PM
AT 2nd Floor, Unit 9, STPI Building, 5 Rajiv Gandhi Road,
Taramani, Chennai 600113
Contact Nos: +91- 44-3910 3600, 3616-20, 3644-45

be a GAME

Changer
WITH

CsDigital
CsCloud
CsBigData
CLIDAC
CLISAC
ARGCIC
CLPM

